BEFORE THE
.BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against:

LAUDEN INTEGRATIVE PHARMACY, INC.

1820 41% Avenue, Suite F
Capitola, CA 95010

Original Permit No. PHY 43209

Sterile Compounding License No. LSC 99162

- and

MEHRDAD REYHANI
394 Brooktree Ranch Road

- Aptos, CA 95003

Pharmacist License No. RPH 45597

Respondents.

Case No. 5963

OAH No. 2017051216

DECISION AND ORDER

The attached Stipulated Settlement of License and Order is hereby adopted by the Board

of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this matter.-

This Decision shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on November 29, 2017.

It is so ORDERED on October 30, 2017.

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

A=

By'

Amy Gutierrez, Pharm.D.
Board President
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KXAVIER BECERRA
Attorney General of California
DiANN SOKOLOFF

- Supervising Deputy Attorney General

NICHOLAS TSUKAMAKI
Deptity Attorney General
State Bar No. 253959
1515 Clay Street, 20th Floor
P.O. Box 70550
Oakland, CA 94612-0550
Telephone: (510) 879-0982
Facsimile: (510) 622-2270
E«mail: Nicholas.Tsukamaki@doj.ca.gov
Attarneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA -

In the Matter of the Aceusation Against:
LAUDEN INTEGRATIVE PHARMACY,

1820 41st Avenue, Suite F
Capitola, CA 95010

Original Permit No, PHY 43209
Sterile Compounding License No. LSC
99162

and

MEHRDAD REYHANI

394 Brooktree Ranch Road

Aptos, CA 95003

Pharmacist License No, RPH 45597

Responidents,

Case No. 5963
OAH No. 2017051216

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND
DISCIPLINARY ORDPER

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-

entitled proceedings that the following matters are true:

PARTIES

I Virginia Herold (Complainant) is the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmagy

(Boatd). She brotight this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in this matter by

Xavier Becerra, Attotney General of the State of California, by Nicholas Tsukarnaki, Deputy
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Attorney General, _

2. Lauden Integrative Pharmacy, Inc. (Respondent Lauden) and Mehrdad Reyhani
(Respondent Reyhani) are represented in this proceeding by attorney Ivan Petrzelka, whose
address is: 49 Discovery, Suite 240, Irvine, CA 92618-67 13.

- 3. Onorabout August 22, 1997, the Board issued Original Permit No, PHY 43209 to

-Respondent Lauden. The Original Permit was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the

charges brought in Accusation No. 5963 and will expire oit August 1, 2018, unless renewed.

4. Onorabout July 28, 2003, the Board issued Sterile Compounding License No. LSC
99162 to Respondent Lauden. The Stetile Compounding License was in full foree and effect at
all times relevant to the charges brought in Accusation No. 5963 and expired on August 1, 2017.
The Sterile Compoeunding License hasino‘é beein renewed,

5. Onorabout August 24, 1992, the Board issued Pharmiacist Licenise No. RPH 45597
to Respondent Reyhani. The Pharmacist License was in full force and effect at all times relevant
to the charges brought in Accusation No. 5963 and will expita an May 31, 2018, unless renewed:

JURISDICTION

6. Accusation No. 5963 was filed before the Board and is currently pending against
Respondents. The Accusation and all other statutorily required documeénts were properly served
on Respondents on January 18,2017. Respondents timely filed their Notice of Defense
contesting the Accusation.

7. A copy of Accusation No. 5963 is attached as exhibit A and incotporated in this
Stipulated Setilement and Disciplinary Order by reference,

ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS

8. Respondenis have varefully read, fully disciissed with cotnsel, and understand the

"charges and allegations in Accusation No. 5963, Respondents have also caréfully fead, fully

discussed with counsel, and understaﬁ._d the effects of this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary
Order.

9 Respondents are fully aware of their legal rights inthis matter, in¢luding the right to a
hearing on the charges and allegations in the Accusation; the right to confront and cross-examine
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the witnesses against them; the right to present evidence and to testify on their own behalf; the
right to the issuance of subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of
documents; the right to reconsideration and coutt review of an adverse decision; and all other
rights accorded by the California Administrative Procedure Act and other a_p-p]icébte laws,

10, Respondents voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waive and give up each and
every right set forth above.

CULPABILITY

11, Respondents understand and agree that the charges and allegations in Accusation No,
5963, if proven at a hearing, constitute cause for imposing discipline tpon their licenses.

12. For the purpose of resolving the Accusation without the expense and uncertainty of
further proceedings, Respondents agree that, at a hearing, Complainant could establish a factual
basis for the charges in the Accusation, and that Res;_ﬁondants hereby give up their right to contest
those charges, .

13.  Respondents agree that their licenses are subject to discipline and they agree to be:
bound by the Board’s probationary terms as set forth in the Disciplinary Order below,

CONTINGENCY

14, This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the Board. Respondents understand
and agree that counsel forCOmpiainant and the staff of the B-oard:ma.y communicaie directly with |
the Board regarding this stipulation and settlement without notice to or participation by
Respondents or theit counsel. By signing the stipulation, Respondents understand and agree that
they may not withdraw theiragreemiont or seek to rescind the stipulation prier to the time the
Board considers and acts upon it, If the Board fails to adapt this stipulation as its Decision and
Order, the Siipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order shall be of rio foree or effect, except for

this paragraph, it shall be inadmissible i any legal action between the parties, and the Board shall

- not be disqualified from further action by having considered this matter,

15.  The parties understand anid agree that Portable Document Forrnat (PDF) and facsimile

copies of this Stipulated Seftlement and Disciplinary Order, including PDF and Tacsimile

signatures thereto, shall have the same force and effect as the originals,
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16.  This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is intended by the parties to be an
integrated writing representing the complete, final, and exclusive embodimient of their agreement,
It supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, discussions,
negotiations, and commitments (written or oral). This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary
Order may not be altered, amended, modified, supplemented, or otherwise changed except by a
writing executed by an authorized representative of each of the parties, |

7. In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties agree that
the Board may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the following
Disciplinary Order; | _ | |

DISCIPLINARY ORDER
© AS TO RESPONDENT LAUDEN’S STERILE COMPOUNDING LICENSE
ITIS HEREBY ORDERED that Sterile Compounding Lisense No. LSC 99162 issued fo

Respondent 'Lauden_ Integrative Pharmacy, Inc. (Respondent Lauden) is surrendered and accepted
by the Board of Pharmacy.

1. The surrender of the license and the acceptance of the surrendered licerise by the
Board shall constitute the imposition of discipline against Respondent Lauden. This stipulation.
c:onétiiutes a record of the diseipline and shall become a part of Respondent Lauden’s licénse
histery with the Board.

2, Respondent Lauden shall Eose. all rights and privileges to practice under its Sterile
Compounding License in California as of the effective date of the Board’s Decision and Order.

3. Respondent Lauden shall cause to be delivered to the Board ite wall Ticense on or
before the effective date of the Decision snd Orde.

4. Respondent Landen may not apply, reapply, or petifion for any license from the
Board.for three (3) years from the effective date of tl;e Deoision and Order.

5. IfRespondent Lauden ever applies for licensure of pétitiong for'rr&i'ﬁstatm’neﬁt in the
State of California, the Board shall freat it s a new apfa[ication for ligensure, Respondent Lauden

tmust-comply with all the laws, regulations and procedurgs for licensute in 6ffsct at the time the

application or petition is filed, and all of the charges and allegations contained in Accusation No.

4
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5963 shall be deemed to be true, correct, and admitted by Respondent Lauden when the Board
determines whether to grant or deny the application or petition,

6. Prior to the issuance of a new or reinstated license to Respondent Lauden,
Respondent Lauden shall pay to the Board costs of investigation and enforcement in the amount
of $6,500.00. Respondent Lauden is jointly and severaily liable with Respondent Reyhani for
payment of those costs,

7. Should Respondent Lauden ever apply or reapply for a new license or certification, or
petition for reinstatement of a license, by any other health care licensing agency in the State of
California, all of the charges and allegations contained in Accusation No. 5963 shall be deemed to
be true, correet, and admitted by Respondent Lauden for the purpose of any Statement of Issues

orany other proceeding seeking to deny or restrict licensure.

AS TO RESPONDENT LAUDEN’S ORIGINAL PERMIT
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Original Permit No, PHY 43209 fssved to Respondent
Lauden Integrative Pharmacy, Inc. is revoked, However, the revocation is stayed and Respondent
Lauden is placed on pmbaﬁ_‘on for four (4) years on the following terms and conditions.
I. . Obey All Laws k |
Respondent Lauden shall obey all state and feders] la;yvs and regulations.
Respondent Lauden shall report any of the following oecurrerices to the Board, in writing,
within seventy-twe (72) hours of such ocourrence: |
«  anarrest orissuarice of a criminal complaint for viala‘gion of'any provision of the
Pharmaey Law, state and federal food and drug laws, or state and federal coniroiled
substances laws; |
. a plea of guilty or nolo contendere in-any state or federal eriminal pr'océedfng to any
criminal coniplaint, information or indictment;
* a convietion of any crime;
+  discipline, ditation, or other administrative acti.énﬁ filed by aﬁy state or federal ageney |
which involves Respondent Lauden’s original permit or'which is related to the
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practice of pharmacy or the manufacturing, obtaining, handling, distributing, billing,
or charging for any drug, device or controlled substance.
FPai !qre to timely report such occurrence shall be considered a violation of probation.
2. Report to the Board
Respondent Lauden shall report to the Board quarterly, on a schedule as directed by the
Board orits designee. The report shai!’lbe made either in person or in writing, s directed.

Among other requirements, Respondent Lauden shall state in cach report under penalty of perjury

whether there has been compliance with all the terms and conditions of probation. Failure to

submit timely reports in a form as directed shall be considered a violation of probation. Any

1| period(s) of delinquency in submission of reports as directed may be added to the total period of

probation. Moreover, if the final probation report is it made as dirccted, probation shall be
automatically extended until such time as the final report is made and aceepted by the Board,

3. Interview with the Board

Upon receipt of reasonable prior notice, Respondent Lauden’s owner shall appear in person
for interviews with the Board or its designee, at such intervals and locations as are determinad by

the Board or its designee. Failure to appear for any scheduled interview without prior notification

“to Board staff; or faflure to appear for two (2) or more scheduled interviews with the Board or its

designee during the period of probation, shall be considered a violation of probation,
4, Cooperate with Board Staff

Respondent Lauden shall cooperate with the Board’s inspection program and with the

Board’s monitoring and investigation of Respondent Lauden’s compliance with the terms and
g FEStLg :

conditions of its probation, Failure fo coaperate shall be considered 8 violation. of probation.

5. Reimbursement of Board Costs

/As a condition precedent to successful completion of probation, Resporident Lauden shall
pay-the Board its costs of investigation and prosecution in the amgunt of $6,500.00. Respondent

Lauden is jointly and severally liable with Respondent Reyhani for payment of those costs.

‘Respondent Layden may pay those costs pursuant to & payment plan. There shall be no deviation

from that-plan-absent priar written approval by the Board or its designee. Failueg to pay-costs by
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the deadline(s) as directed shall be considered a violation of probation.

The filing of bankrﬁ.ptcy by Respondent Lauden shall not relieve Respondent Lauden of its
resﬁonsibiﬁ-ty to reimburse the Board its costs of investigation and prosecution,

6.  Probation Monitoring Costs

Respondent Lauden shall pay any costs associated with probation monitoring as deteimined
by the Board each and every year of probation. Suai{ costs shall be payable to the Board on & -

schedule as directed by the Board or its designee. Failure to pay stfch_ costs by the deadline(s) as

- directed shall be considered a violation of probatior,

7. . Status of License

Respondent Lauden shall, at all times while on probation, maintain current licensure with
the Board. If Respondent Lauden submits an application ta the Board, and the application is
approved, for a change of location, change of permit or change of ownership, t:h_e_ Baard shall
retain continuing jurisdiction over the license, and R.éspcndent Lauden shall remain on probation
as determined by the Board, Fatlure to raintain current licensure shall be considered a violation
of probation, |

If 'Respondent Lauden’s license expires or is cancelled by operation of law or otherwise ét
any time during the period of probation, including any extensions thereof or otherwise, upon
renewal or reapplication Respondent Lauden’s license shall be subject to all terms and conditions
of this probation not previously satisfied. |

8.  License Surrender Whilc on P_rob_a‘-tio__nfSus‘p‘e’:zsion_

Following the effective date of this decision, should Respondent Lauden discontinue

business, Respondent Lauden may tender the premises license to the Board for surrender. The

|| Board or its designee shall have the discretion whether to grant the request for surrender ar take

any other action it deems appropriate and reasonable, Upon formal #cceptaiice of the sutrender of
the license, Respondent Lauden will no longer be subject to the terms and gonditions of
probatior.

Upon acceptance of the surrender, Respondent Lauden shall relinguish the premises wall
and renewal license to the Bourd within ten (10) days of notification by the Boaid that the

-
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surrender is accepted. Respondent Lauden shall further submit a completed Discontinuance of
Business form according to Board guidelines and shall notify the Board of the records inventory
transfer. Respondent Lauden shall also, by the effective date of this decision, atrange for the
continuation of care for ongoing patients of the pharmacy by, at mit{imum, providing a written
notice to ongoing patients that specifies the anticipated closing date of the pharimacy and that
identifies one or more area pharmacies capable of taking up the patients” care,.and by cooperating |
as may be necessary in the transfer of records or prescriptions for ohgoing patients, Within five
days of its provision to the pharmacy’s ohgo’ing patients, Respondent Lauden shall provide a copy
of the written notice fo the Board. For the purposes of this provision, “Qngoing patients” ineans
those patients for whom the pharmacy has on file a prescription with one or more refilts
outstanding, or for whom the pharmacy has filled 4 prescription within the preceding sixty (60)
days.

Respondent Lauden may not apply for any new licensure from the Board for three (3) yéars
from the effective da{'e of the surrender. Respondent Lauden sha_i_l' meet all requirements
applicable to the license sought as of the date-the appiicat'iﬁn_ for that license is submitted tothe
Board. |

Respondent Lauden further stipulates that it shall reimburse the Board for its costs of
investigation and prosecution prior to the acceptatice: of the surrender,

9. Notice to Employees

Respondent Lauden shatl, upon or before the effective date of this decision; ensure that all
employees involved in pesmit operations are made aware of all the terms and conditions of
probation, either by posting a notice of the terms and conditions, citculating such notice, or both,
[f'the notice required by this provision i_s‘pos"ted_, it shall be -p‘oste_‘d-'in-a;pro_m:inent place and shall
remain posted throughout the probation period.. Respondent Lauden shall ensure that any
employees hired or used alter the effective date of this decision ate made aware of the terms and
tonditions of probation by pést’ii1g a notice, circulating a notice, orboth. Additionally,
Respondent Lauden shall submit written notification to the Board, within fifteen {15} days of the
effective date of this decision, that this term has been satisfied. Failure to submiit such

8
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notification to the Board shall be considered a violation of probation.

“Employees” as used in this provision includes all full-time, part-time, volunteer, temporary
and relief employees and independent contractors employed or hired at any time during
probation.

10.  Owners and Officers: Knowledge of the Law

Respondent Lauden shall provide, within thirty (30) days afier the effeetive date of this
decision, signed and dated statements from its owners, including any owner or holder of ten _
percent (10%) or more of the interest in Respondent Lauden or Respondent Lauden's stock, and
any officer, stating under penalty of perjury that said individuals have read afid are familiar with
state and federal laws and regulations governing the practice of pharmacy. The failure to timely
provide said statements under j;ienalty of petjury shall be considered & violation of probation.-

11.  Posted Noftice of Probation ‘

Respondent Lauden shali prominently post a probation notice provided by the Board ina
place conspicuous and readable to the public. The probation notice shall remain posted during
the entire period of probation, |

Respondent Lauden shall not, directly of iidirectly, éngage in any conduct or make any
statement which is intended to mislead or is Iikely to Fave the effect of misleading any patient,
customer, member of the pu_b_li'c,. or other person(s) as to the nature of and reason for the probation |
of the licensed entity.

Failure to post such nofiee éh-all be considered a violation of probation.

12, Violation (if Probation

1f Rﬁspondem Lauden has not complied with any term or cotidition of probation, the Bo'rrd
shall ‘have continuing Jurisdiction-over Respondent Landen’s license, and probation shall
automatically be extended until all terms and _cond itions have been satisfied or the Board has
taken other action as deemed appropriate o treat the failure to cotmply as a violation of probation,
to terminate probation, and o impose the penalty that was stayed,

It Respondent Lauden violates probation in aﬁy respect, the Board, after giving Respondem

' Lauden notice and an opportunity to be hea:cl may revoke probation and cairy out the

9
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disciplinary order that was stayed. Natice and oppottunity to be heard are not required for those
provisions stating that a violation thereof may lead to automatic termination of‘ the stay and/or
revocation of the license, .I'fa petition to revoke probation or an accusation is filed against
Respondent Lauden during probation, the Board shall have continuing jurisdiction and the ‘period
of probation shall be automatically extended until the petition to revoke probation or accusation is
heard.and decided, and the charges and allegations il Accusation No. 5963 shall be decmed true
and correct.

13, Completion of Probation

Upon writlen notice by the Board or its designes indicating sucoessful completion of
probation, Respondent Lauden’s license will be fully restored. -

14, Remedial Education

Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this decision, Respondent Lauder shall
sub'mi'f to the Board or its designeg, for prior approval, an appropriate pragram of remedial
education related to compounding, The program of remedial education shall consist o-f"at_least_sik
(6) hours for each member of Respondent Layden’s compounding staff, Those liours shail be
completed within six (6) months of the effective date of this decision al Respondent Lauden’s
own expense, All remedial education shall be in addition to, and shall not be credited toward,
continuing _e:d_uca_ti'on (CE) eourses used for ficense renewsl purposes,

Failure to timely submit or compiete the ap]&)roved remedial education shall be considered a
violation of prebation. The peried of probation will be autoniatically extended until such
remedial education is successfully completed and written proof, ina form acceptable to the
Board, is provided to the Board or its designee:

FoIIowErig the completion ofeach course, the Board or its designee may require Respondent
Lauden’s compounding staff, at Respondent Lauden's own expense, 1o take an approved |
examination 1o test the slafl members’ knowledge of the course. If the staff members do not
achieve a passing score on the examination, this failure shall be vonsidered a violation of

probation. Any such examination faiture shall require Respondent Lauden’s compounding staff’

‘to take another course approved by the Board In the same subject arca,

10
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15,  Consultant Pharmacist Review of Pharmacy Operations

During the period of probation, Respondent Lauden 'shail tetain an independent consultant
at its own expense who shall be responsible for reviewing pharmacy operations on a mbnthly.
basis for compliance by Respondent Lauden with state and federal laws and regulations
governing the practice of pharmacy. The consultant shall be a pharmacist licensed by and not on
probation with the Board and whose name shall be submiited to the Board or its designee, for
prior approval, within thirty (30) days of' the effective date of this decision. During the period of
probation, the Board or its designee retains the discretion to reduce the frequency of the
pharmacist consultant’s review of Respondent Lauden’s operations. Failure to timely retain, seek
approval of, or ensure timely reporting by the consultant shall be considered a violation of

probation

AS TO RESFONDENT REYHANT'S PHARMACIST LICENSE
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Pharmatist License No, RPH 45597 {ssued to Respondent
Mehrdad Reyhani (Respondent Reyhani) is revoked. However, the revacation is stayed and
Respondent Reyhani is placed on probation for fout (4) years on the following terms and
conditions.
16.  Obey All Laws
‘ ‘Respondent Reyhan’_if shall obey all state and federal laws and regulations.
Respondent Reyhani shall report any of the fpiluwing occurrences to the Board, in 'wriitfng,
within seventy-two (72) hours of such ocgurrence!
. an.arrest or issuance of a criminal complaint for violation of any provision of the
‘Pharmacy Law, state ant federal foed and drug laws, or state and Tederal controlled
stubstances laws;
*  apleaof guilty or nolo contenders in any state 'or federal oriminal proceeding to any
criminal complaint, information or iIndictment; |
+  acenviction ofany crime;
1

Al
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. discipline, citation, or other administrative action filed by ariy state or foderal agency
which involves Respondent Reyhani’s pharmacist license or which is related to the 7
practice of pharmacy or the mamifacturiné, obtaining, handling, distributing, billing,
o‘r charging for any drug, device or contiolled substance, - |

Failure to timely report such occurrence shall be considered a violation of probation,

17. Réport to the Board

Respé‘nde‘nt Reyhant shall report to the Board quarterly, on a schedule as dirscted by the

Board or its designee. The report shall be made either in person o in writing, as directed.
Among other requirements, Respondent Reyhani shall state in each report under penalty of
perjury whether there has been compliance with all the terms and conditions of probation. Failure
to submit timely reports in a form as directed shall be considered a violation of probation. Any

period(s) of delinquency in submission of reports as directed may be added to the total period of

probation. Morcover, if' the final probation report is not made as directed, probation shall be

automatically extended untit such time as the final report is made and docepted by the Board,

18, Interview with the Board

Upon receipt of reasonable ptior notice, Respondent Reyheani shall appear in person for
intérvi‘ews with the Board or its designes, at such intervals and location's as sre determined by the
Board or its designee. Failure to appear for any scheduled interview without prior no-ti'ﬁcatfeﬁ to
Board staff, or failure to appear for two (2) or more scheduled interviews with the Board or its
designee during the petiod of probation, shall be considered a violation of probation,

19.  Cooperate with Board Staffl

Respondent Reyhani shall cooperate with the Board’s inspection pregram and with the
Board's monitoting and investigation of Respondent Reyhani’s compliance with the terms and
sonditions of his probation, Failure to cooperate shall be-oonsidered a Vidlition of probaticn,

20, Continuing Education

Respondent Reyhani shall provide evidence of efforts to maintain skill and knowledge as a |
pharmacist as directed by the Board or its desigrice.
111
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21.  Notice to Employers

During the period of probation, Respondent Reyhani shall notify all present and prospective
employers of the Decision in case number 5963, and the terms, conditions and restrictions
imposed on Respondent Reyhani by the Decision, as follows:

Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Decfsic;li, and within fifteen (15) days of
Respondent Reyhani undertaking any new employment, Respondent Reyhani shall cause his
direct supervisor, pharmacist-in-charge (including each new pharmacist-in-charge emiployed
during Respondent Reyhant’s tenure of employment) and owner to‘repo“rt to the Board in writing
acknowledging that the Tisted 'iﬂdividum(sj has/have read the Decistoti in case number 5963, and
terms and conditions imposed thereby, It sha!lmbe Respondent Reyhan{’s responsibility to ensvre |
that his employer(s) and/or superviso:(s) submit timely acknowledgment(s) to the Board,

| If Respondent Reyhani works for or is employed by or through a pharmacy employment
servieo, Respondent Reyhani must notify his direct supervisor, pharmacist-in-chargs, and owner
at every entity licensed by the Board of the terms and conditions of the Degision in case nurber

5863 in advance of ReSpondént Reyhani commencing work at each licensed entity, A record of

this notification must be provided to the Board upon request.

Furihenno're within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Decision, and within fifteen
(15) days of Respondent Rayham undertaking any new employment by or through a pharmacy
empfoyment service, Respondent Reyham shatll cause His divect supervisor with the pharmagcy
employment seryice to report to the Board in writing acknowiedgmg_ that he has read the E);:cisicm.
in case number 5963 and the terms and conditions imposed thereby, 1t shall be Respondent
Reyhani’s responsibility to ensure that his employer(s) and/or supervisor(s) submit timely
acknowledgment(s)to the Board. ' |

Failur_e. to timely notify pri_:‘sentfof prospective employer(s) or to canse that/those

employer(s) to submit timely acknowledgments to the Board shall be considered a violation of

probation,

“Employment” within the meaning of this provision shall include any fuli-time, pari-time, -
temporary, relief or pharmacy management service as a pharmscist or any position for which a
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pharmacist license is a requirement ot criterion for employment, whether Respondent is an
employee, independent contractor or voiunteer. | |

22. No Supervision of Interns, Serving as Pharmac’ist-iu-Chafge (PIC), S-erving as
Designated Representative-in-Charge, or Serving as a Cousultant

During the period of probation, Respondent Reyhani shall not supervise any intern
pharmacist, be the pharmacist-in-charge or designated representative-in-chargs of any entity
licensed by the Board nor serve as a consultant unless otherwise specified in this order.
Assumption of any such unauthorized supervision responsibilities shall be considered a violation
of 'p.robatio.n. |

23.  Reimbursement of Board Cosfs

As a condition précedent.to successful completion of probation, Respondent Reyhani shall
pay the Board its costs of investigation dnd prosecution in the amount of $6,500.00. Respondent
Reyhani is jointly and severally liable with Respondent Lauden for payrﬁent of those costs.

Respondent Reyhani may pay those costs pursuant to a paymerit plan. There shall be no deviation

| from that plan absent prior written approval by the Board or its designee. Failure to pay costs by

 the deadline(s) as directed shall be considered a violation of probation,

The filing of bankruptey by Respondent Reyhani shall not relisve Respondent Reyhani of
his responsibility to reimburse the Board its costs of investi gation and prosecution, |

24, Probation Monitoring Costs

Respondent Reyhani shall pay any costs associated with probation moitoring as
determined by the Board gach and every yéar of prob‘atiéu.._ Such costs shall be payable to the
Board on a schedule as directed by the Board or its designee. Failure to pay such costs by the
deadline(s) as directed shall be considered a violation of probation.

25,  Status of I;icer::se

- Respondent Reyhani shall, af all times while on probation, maintain an active, cuirrént
license with the Board, including any period during which suspension or probation is'tolled.
Failure to maintain an active, curtent license shall be considered a violation of probation,
111 '
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If' Respondent Reyhani’s license expires or is canoelled by operation of law or otherwise at
any time during tﬁe period of probation, including any exiensions thereof due to tolling or
otherwise, upon renewal or reapplication Respondent Reyhani’s license shall be subject to all
terms and conditions of this probation not previously satisfied.

26.  License Surrender While on Probation/Suspension

Following the effective date of this Decision, should Respondent Reyhant cease practice
due to retirement or health, or be otherwise unable to satisfy the terms and conditions of
prabation, Respondent Reyhani may tender his license to the Board for surrender, ‘The Board or
its designee shall have the discretion whether to grant the request for surrender or take any other
action it deems appropriate and reasonable, Upon formal acceptance of the sutrender of the
license, Respondent Reyhani will no longer be subject to the tarms and condifions of probation,
This surrender constitutes a record of discipline and shall become a part of Respondent Reyhani’s
license history with the Board. |

Upon acceptance of the surrender, Respondent Reyhani shall relinguish his pocket and wall
license to the Board within ten {10) days of notification by the Board that the surtender is
accepted. Respondent Reyhani may not reapply for any license from the Board for theee (3) years

from the effective date-of the surrender, Respondent Reyhani shall meet all fequirements

| applicable to the license sought as of the date the application for that license is submitted to the

| Board, including any outstanding costs.

27, Notification of 2 Change in Name, Residence Address, Mailing Address or
Employment ‘

Respondent Reyhani shall riotify the Board in writing within ten (10) days of ariy change of
emplqyment. Said notification shall include the reasons for leaving, the address of the new
employer, the name of the supervisor and owner, and the work schedule if known. Respondent

Reyhani shall further notify the Board in writing within ten {10) days of a change in hane,

-residence address, mailing address, or phone number,

Failure to timely notify the Board of any change in employer(s), name{s), address{es), or
phone numbet(s) shall be considered a violation of probation,
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28, Tolling of Probation

Except during periods of suspension, Respondent Reyhani shall, at all times while on
probation, be employed as a pharmasist in California for a minimum of forty {40) hours per
calendar month. Any month during which this minimum is not met shall toll the period of
probation, ie., the period of probation shall be extended by one month for each month during
which this minimum is not met. During any such period of tolling of probation, Respondent
Reyhani must nonetheless comply with all terms and conditions of probation.

Should Respondent Reyhani, regardless of residency, for any reason (including vacation)
-celase practicing as a pharmacist for a minimum of forty (40) hours per calendar month in
California, Respondent Reyhani must notify the Board in writing within ten (10) days of the
cessation of practice; aﬁd must further notify the Board in writing within ten (10) days of'the
resumption of practice. Any failure to provide such notification(s) shall be considered a violation
of probation, | |

It is a viclation of probation for Respondent Reyhéni’s probation to remain tolled pursuant
to the provisions of this condition for a total period, cou'ﬂt.fngf consecutive and non-conseeutive
months, exceeding thirty-six (36) months:

“Cessation of practice” means any calendar month during which Respondent Reyhani is not
practicing as g pharmacist for at least forty (40) hours, as defined by Business and Professiohs
Code section 4000 et seq. “Resumption of practice™ means any calendar month cluring which
Respondent Reyhani is practicing as 4 pharmacist for at lesst forty (40) hét:rs’ a8 & pharmacist g5
defingd by Business and Professions Cod_(-v} section 4000 et seq.

29,  VYialation of Probation

If Respondent Reyhani has not complied with any term or condition of probation, the Board

shall haye continuing jurisdiction over Respondent Reyhani, and probation shall automatically be

extended until all terms and conditions have been safisfied or the Board has taken other action us

deemed appropriate to treat-the failure to comply as a violation of probation, to terminate
probation, and to ilﬁpQSe.the_pe'nalty that wag stayed,
/i
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If Res-poﬁdent Reyhani violates probation in any tespect, the Board, after giving
Respondent Reyhani notice and an opportunity to be hedrd, may revoke probation and carry out
the disciplinary ordet that was stayed. Notice and opportunity to be heard are riot required for
those provisions stating that a-violation thereof may lead to automatic termination of the stay
and/or revocation of the Iicen‘se.‘ If a petition 1o revoke probation or an accusation is filed against
Respondent Reyhani during probatior, the Board shall have continuing jurisdiction and the period |
of probation shall be automatically extended until the petition to revoke probation 6t accusation is|
heard and decided, and the charges and allegations in Accusation No. 5963 shall be deemed true
and correct,

30, Completion of Probation

. Upon written notice by the Board or its designee in;di-cating.sunc_essfui completion of
probation, Respondent Reyhani’s license will be fully restored.

31.  Remedial Education

'W‘rifhin thirty (30) days of the cffective date of this decision, Respondent Reyharii shall
submit to the Board or its designee, for prior _apprbval, ani appropriate program of remedial
education related to pharmacy law/compliance, the role of the pharmacist-in-charge, and
controlled substances requirements. The program of remedial education shall consist of a total of
ten (10) hours for each year of probation, Fifty percent (50%) of the hours must be complated in
person. These hours must be completed at Reapondent Reyhani’s awn expéﬁse. All remedial
education shall be in addition to, and shall not be ciedited toward, continuing education (CE}
courses used for license renewal porposes. Based on his attendance at the “CPhA Pharmacy Law
and Practice Conference” oh September 16, 2017, in Garden Grove, CA, Respondent Reyhani
shall be eredited six (6) hours of in person remedial education toward fulfillment of the first year
remedial education requiremsnt specified in this Cblﬁditiﬁn‘

Failure to timely submit or complete the approved remedial education shall be considered 4
violation of probation. The period of probation will be avtomatically extended until such
remedial education is sucQBSS‘ﬁJll;j/:coiﬁjpEeted and wiltteri proof, in a form acceptable to the
Board, is provided 1o the Board or its designee.
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Following the completion of each coutse, the Board or its designee may require Responden
Reyhani, at his own expense, to take an approved examination to test Respondent Reyhani’s
knowledge of the course. If Respondent Reyhani does not achieve a passing score on the
examination, this failure shall be considered a violation of probation, Any such exdmination
failure shall require Respondent Reyhani to take another course approved by the Board in the
same subjcet area,

32.  Supervised Practice

During the pe:riod of probation, Respondent Reyhani shall practice only under the

supervision of a licensed pharmagist not on probation with the Board, Upon and after the

- effective dafe of this Decision, Respondent. Reyhani shall not practice pharmacy and his ticense

shall be automatically susp_enda_d unti] a supervisor is approved by the Board or its desipnee. The
supscrvision shall be, as required by the Board or its designee, either:

Continuous -~ At least 75% of a work week;

Stibstantial - At least 50% of a work week;

Partial - At least 25% of a work week; or

Daily Review - Supervisor's review of probationer’s daily activities within 24 hours,

The supervision will begin at the Daily Review level,

Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this Decision, Respondent Reyhani shall

| have his supervisor submit notification to the Board in writing ,sta_ti‘rs_g that the supervisor has read |

‘the Decision in case number 5963 and is familiar with thérequired lovel of supervision 4s

determined by the Board or its-designee, It shall be Respondent Reyhani’s respansibility o
ensure that his employer(s), pharmacist-in-charge, and/or supervisor(s) submit timely
a{:knowiadgement(s} to the Board. Failure to cause the direct supervisor and t'hé pharmaelst-in-
charge to submit timely acknowledgerments to the Board shiall be vonsidered a viglation of
probation, | |

If Respondent Reyhani changes employment, it shall be Respendent Reyhani’s
responsibility to ensure that his.employer(s), pharmacist-in-charge, and/or supervisor(s) submit
timely acknowledgement(s) to the Board. Respondent Reyhiani shall have his new sipervisor,
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within fifteen (15) days after employment commences, submit notification to the Board in writing
stating the direct superyisor and pharmacist-in-charge have read the Decision in ease number
5§963 and is familiar with the level of suporvision a5 determined by the Board, Rcspbndent’
Reyhani shall not practice pharmacy and his licenss shall be autdmaﬁCaE.ly:.s_USpended until the
Board or its designee approves a new supervisor, Failure to cause the direct supervisor and the
pharmacist-in-charge to submit timely acksowledgements to the Board shall be considerad a
violation of probation.

Within ten (10) days of leaving employment, Respondent Reyhani shall notify the Board in
writing. _

Subject to the above restrictions, Respondent Reyhani may continue to own orhold an
interest in any licensed premises in which he holds aninterest at the time this Decision becomes
effective unless otherwise spfm@ﬁed in this order.

33.  No Ownership of Licensed Premises

Respondent Reyhani shall not acquire any new ownership, legal or beneficial interest hor

| serve as a manager, administrator, member, officer, direotor, trustee, associate, or partner of any

additional business, firm, pattnership, or ¢orporation licensed by the Board. If Respondent
‘Reyhani currently owns or has any legal or beneficial inferest in, or serves as a manager,
administrator, member, officer, dircctor, trustee, associate, or pattner of any business, fizm,

partnership, or corporation currently or heveinafter licensed by the Board, Respatdent Reyhani

may continue to serve in such capacity or hold that interest, but only to the extent of that position |

- or interest as of the effective date of this Decision. A violation of this restriction shall be

considered a violation of probation,

34, Consulfant for Owner or Pharmacist-In-Charge

During the period of probation, Respondent Reyhani shall not supetyise any interi
pharmacist or serve-as a consultant to any entity licensed hy the Board, Respondent Reyhani imay

be a pharmacist-in-charge. However, if during the period of probation Respondent Reyhani

|| serves as a pharmacist-in-charge; Respondent Reyhani shall retain an independént consultant at

his own expense who shall be responsible for reviewing pharmacy operations on 4 monthly basis
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for compliance by Respondent Reyhani with state and federa] laws and regulations governing the

practice of pharmacy and for compliance by Respondent Reyhani with the obligations of a

pharmacist-in-charge, The consultant shall be phanﬁ-acist licensed by and riot an probation with

the Board and whose name shall be submitted to the Board ar ity designee, for prior approval,
within thirty (30} days of the effective date of this decision, Respondent Reyhani may be a
pharmacisi-in-charge only at Lauden Integrative Pharniacy, Tnc., PHY 43209, and not at any other
pharmacy. Failare to timely retuin, seek approval of, or ensure timély‘reportih g by the consultani
shall be considered a violation of probation.

35. Ethics Course

Within sixty (60) calendar days of the effeotive date of this Decision, Respondent Reyhani
shall enroll in a course in ethics, at Respondent Reyhani’s expense, approved in advance by the
Board or its designee. Failure to initiate the course-dﬁn‘ng the first year of probation, and
complete it within the second year of probation, is a violation of probation.

Respondent Reyhani shall submit a certificate of completion to the Board or its designee

within five days after completing the course.

ACCEPTANCE |
T have carefully read the above Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order and have fully
discussed it with my attorney, Ivan Petrzclka, Tunderstand the stipulation and the effect it will
have on my Ori ginaf Permit and Sterile Compounding License. Tenter into this Stipulated
Settlement and Disciplinary Order voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be
bound by the Degision and Order of the Board of Pharmacy.

- Mehrdad Reyhani for ,
LAUDEN INTEGRATIVE PHARMACY, INC.
Respondent

DATED:; - e 2.« 17
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I'have carefully read the above Stipulated Setilement and Disciplinary Order and have fully
discussed it with my attorney, Ivan Petrzelka, 1 understand the stipulation and the effect it will
have on my Pharmagist Licens_e; T enter into this Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order

voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently, and agree to be bound by the Decision and Order of the

Board of Pharmagcy.

DATED; .0{“ T « |7 Q// &w/{ﬂ-ﬂv‘—k
' MEHRDAD REYHANI
Respondent

I have read and fully discussed with Respondents Lauden Integrative Pharmacy, In¢. and

‘Mehrdad Reyhani the terms and conditions and other matters contained in the above Stipulated

Settternent and Disciplinary Order. T approve its form and content.-

et
DATED: September 22, 2017 Vé,?@ff*‘

TVAN FETRZELKA.
Attorney for Respondents

ENDORSEMENT

The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfully

submitted for consideration by the Board of Pharmacy.

Drated: i /g}ﬁ;p};k / 7 Respectfully submitted,
XAVIER BECERRA )
Attorney General of California
Dyann SOKGLOFF

" Swpervising Deputy Attorney Geniral
-’:)l g g_r;fg' (,f&g ;},é',t«f-{c‘f ot mé{ ‘
NICHOLAS TSUKAMAKT

Deputy Attorney Gengral
Attoraeys for Complairiant

SF2016201629
0843569 dor
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- Exhibit A

Accusation No. 5963



KaMALA D. HARRIS
Attorney General of California

2 || JosHUA A. Room
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
3 || NicHOLAS TSUKAMAKI
Deputy Attorney General———— ~ —— T T -
4 || State Bar No. 253959
455 Golden Gate Avenue, Suite 11000
5 San Francisco, CA 94102-7004
Telephone: (415) 703-1188
6 Facsimile: (415) 703-5480
E-mail: Nicholas. Tsukamaki@doj.ca.gov
7 || Attorneys for Complainant
8 BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
9 DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA
10
11 || In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. 5963
12 || LAUDEN INTEGRATIVE PHARMACY,
INC.
13 || 1820 41st Avenue, Suite F |ACCUSATION
4 Capitola, CA 95010
Original Permit No. PHY 43209
15 || Sterile Compounding License No. LSC
99162
16
and
17
MEHRDAD REYHANI
18 || 394 Brooktree Ranch Road
19 Aptos, CA 95003
20 Pharmacist License No. RPH 45597
21 Respondents,
22
23 Complainant alleges:
24 PARTIES
25 1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity
26 || as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer A ffairs,
27 2. Onorabout August 22, 1997, the Board of Pharmacy (Board) issued Original Permit
28 || No.PHY 43209 to Lauden Integrative Pharmacy, Inc. (Respondent Lauden). The Original Permit
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was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on
August 1, 2017, unless renewed.

3. Onor about July 28, 2003, the Board issued Sterile Compounding ILicense No. LSC
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99162 to Laud;n Th; Sterile Compounding License was in full force and effect at all times
relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on August 1, 2017, unless renewed.

4. On or about August 24, 1992, the Board issued Pharmacist License No. RPH 45597
to Mehrdad Reyhani (Respondent Reyhani). The Pharmacist License was in full force and effect
at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on May 31, 2018, unless
renewed.

JURISDICTION

5. This Accusation is brought before the Board under the authority of the following
laws. All section references are to the Business and Professions Code (Code) unless otherwise
indicated.

6.  Section 4011 of the Code provides that the Board shall administer and enforce both
the Pharmacy Law (Bus. & Prof. Code, § 4000 et seq.) and the Uniform Controlled Substances
Act (Health & Safety Code, § 11000 et seq.).

7. Section 4300, subdivision (a) of the Code provides that every license issued by the
Board may be suspended or revoked.

8. Section4300.1 of the Code provides that the expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or
suspension of a Board-issued license, the placement of a license on a retired status, or the
voluntary surrender of a license by a licensee, shall not deprive the Board of jurisdiction to
commence or proceed with any investigation of, or action or disciplinary proceeding against, the
licensee or to render a decision suspending or revoking the license.

STATUTORY PROVISIONS

9. Section 4301 of the Code states:

“The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of unprofessional
conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or misrepresentation or issued by mistake.

Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is not limited to, any of the following;

2
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“() The violation of any of the statutes of this state, of any other state, or of the United

States regulating controlied substances and dangerous drugs.

“(0) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or abetting the
violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of this chapter or of the applicable
federal and state laws and regulations governing pharmacy, including regulations established by
the board or by any other state or federal regulatory agency.

10.  Health and Safety Code section 11164 provides, in pertinent part:

“Except as provided in Section 11167, no person shall prescribe a controlled substance, nor
shall any person fill, compound, or dispense a prescription for a controlled substance, unless it
complies with the requirements of this section.

“(a) Each prescription for a controlled substance classified in Schedule II, III, IV, or V,
except as authorized by subdivision (b), shall be made on a controlled substance prescription form

as specified in Section 11162.1 and shall meet the following requirements . . . .

“(b)(1) Notwithstanding paragraph (1) of subdivision (a) of Section 11162.1, any controlled
substance classified in Schedule ITI, IV, or V may be dispensed upon an oral or electronically
transmitted prescription, which shall be produced in hard copy form and signed and dated by the
pharmacist filling the preseription or by any other person expressly authorized by provisions of
the Business and Professions Code. Any person th transmits, maintains, or receives any
electronically transmitted prescription shall ensure the security, integrity, authority, and
confidentiality of the prescription.”

1. Health and Safety Code section 11165, subdivision (d) provides, in pertinent part:

“For éach prescription for a Schedule II, Schedule 11, or Schedule IV controlled substance,
as defined in the controlled substances schedules in federal law and regulations, specifically

Sections 1308.12, 1308.13, and 1308.14, respectively, of Title 21 of the Code of Federal
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Regulations, the dispensing pharmacy, clinic, or other dispenser shall report the following
information to the Department of Justice as soon as reasonably possible, but not more than seven

days after the date a controlled substance is dispensed, in a format specified by the Department of
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Jus{:ice:

12.  Health and Safety Code section 11200, subdivision (b) states: “No prescription for a
Schedule I or IV substance may be refilled more than five times and in an amount, for all refills
of that prescription taken together, exceeding a 120-day supply.”

REGULATORY PROVISIONS

13.  California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1711 provides, in pertinent part:

“(a) Each pharmacy shall establish or participate in an established quality assurance
program which documents and assesses medication errors to determine cause and an appropriate

response as part of a mission to improve the quality of pharmacy service and prevent errors.

“(e) The primary purpose of the quality assurance review shall be to advance error
prevention by analyzing, individually and collectively, investigative and other pertinent data
collected in response to a medication error to assess the cause and any contributing factors such
as system or process failures. A record of the quality assurance review shall be immediately

retrievable in the pharmacy. . . .

“(9) The record of the quality assurance review, as provided in subdivision (e) shall be
immediately retrievable in the pharmacy for at least one year from the date the record was
created,” |

14.  California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1716 provides, in pertinent part:
“Pharmacists shall not deviate from the requirements of a prescription except upon the prior
consent of the prescriber or to select the drug product in accordance with Section 4073 of the
Business and Professions Code.”

Iy
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] 15.  California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1717 provides, in pertinent part:
2 “(c) Promptly upon receipt of an orally transmitted prescription, the pharmacist shall reduce
3 || it to writing, and initial it, and identify it as an orally transmitted prescription. . . .”
4 16. mﬁCalifornia Code of Rc;glﬂations, title 16, section 1717.3, subdivision (aj ét;l;[’(;S: ;‘Nl)i
5 || person shall dispense a controlled substance pursuant to a preprinted multiple check-off
6 || prescription blank.”
7 17.  California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.2 provides, in pertinent part:
8 “(e) A drug preparation shall not be compounded until the pharmacy has first prepared a
9 || written master formula document that includes at least the following elements:
10
11 “{2) Equipment to be used.
12
13 “(6) Quality reviews required at each step in preparation of the drug.
14 7
15 18.  California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.4 provides, in pertinent part:
16 “(a) Each compounded drug preparation shall be affixed with a container label prior to
17 || dispensing that contains at least:
18
19 “(2) Name (brand or generic) and strength, volume, or weight of each active ingredient. . .
20 || 7
21 19.  California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1751.6 provides, in pertinent part:
22 “(b) The pharmacist-in-charge shall ensure that all pharmacy personnel engaging in
23 || compounding sterile drug preparations have training and demonstrated competence in the safe
24 || handling and compounding of sterile drug preparations, including hazardous agents if the
25 || pharmacy compounds products with hazardous agents.
26 “(c) Records of training and demonstrated competence shall be available for each individual
27 || and shall be retained for three years beyond the period of employment.
28

5
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“(e) Pharmacies that compound sterile drug preparations must comply with the following

training requirements:

N 1 SN B W N

[ S o N L N L o o o L T T
R 1 N U R W N = O Y NI N DR WN e oo

“V(réj”]éaoh perS(;n én;c,;aged in sterile ;:;mpoundi;lg mustrsuccessfully c;)fhﬁlete prac;‘;ical
skills fraining in aseptic technique and aseptic area practices using models that are comparable to
the most complex manipulations to be performed by the individual. Each pharmacist responsible
for, or directly supervising and controlling, aseptic techniques or practices, must demonstrate the
skills needed to ensure the sterility of compounded drug preparations, Evaluation must include
written testing and a written protocol of periodic routine performance checks involving adherence
to aseptic area policies and procedures. Each person’s proficiency and continuing training needs
must be reassessed at least every 12 months. Results of these assessments must be documented
and retained in the pharmacy for three years.”

COSTS

20.  Section 125.3 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that the Board may request the
administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of
the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and
enforcement of the case, with failure of the licentiate to comply subjecting the license to not being
renewed or reinstated. If a case settles, recovery of investigation and enforcement costs may be
included in a stipulated settlement.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

21.  On or about March 9, 2016, two Board Inspectors performed an inspection of Lauden
Integrative Pharmacy.

22.  During the inspeetion the Inspectors determined that the pharmacy was verifying
compounded products without having completed required staff training,

23. The Inspectors also discovered approximately 58 schedule III and IV controlled
substance prescriptions from approximately February 1, 2013 to February 16, 2016 that
Respondents had either refilled more than five (5) times or had refilled in quantities exceeding a
120-day supply.
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24.  The Inspectors discovered approximately five (5) filled controlled substance
prescriptions that were on pre-printed, multiple check-off type forms,

25.  The Inspectors discovered approximately twenty-seven (27) filled controlled
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substance prescripﬁ&g that had been transmitted by phone and that were not reduced to wrifiﬂé,
initialed by the pharmacist, or identified as orally transmitted prescriptions.

26.  The Inspectors discovered approximately four (4) filled controlled substance
prescriptions that were not written on a proper controlled substance prescription form.

27.  The Inspectors discovered a prescription for liquor carbonis detergens 2% in
mometasone 0.1% cream. The label for this prescription used the acronym “LCD?” rather than
spelling out “liquor carbonis detergens.” Respondents mistakenly prepared this prescription as an
ointment rather than as a cream. At the time of the inspection, a quality assurance record for that
medication error was not immediately retrievable.

28.  One of the Inspectors reviewed master formulas for alprostadil 100 meg/ml,
alprostadil 500 meg/ml, and trimix. Those master formulas were missing the equipment to be
used during compounding and the quality reviews required at each step in preparation of the drug.

29.  The Prescription Drug Monitoring Program, which is part of the Controlled Substance
Utilization Review and Evaluation System (CURES), requires weekly reporting of dispensed
schedule II-IV controlled substance prescriptions. On six (6) occasions between approximately
May 2013 and January 2016, Respondents submitted CURES reports at more than 7 day
intervals.

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE,
(Failure to Maintain Record of Quality Assurance Review)

30.  Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivisions (j)

“and/or (0) of the Code and California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1711, subdivisions (e)

and/or (f), in that Respondents made an error in filling a medication and a quality assurance
record for that medication error was not immediately retrievable in the pharmacy. The
circumstances of Respondents” conduct are set forth above in paragraph 27.

/11
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1 SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
2 (Maintaining Incomplete Master Formulas for Compounded Drugs)
3 31.  Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivisions (j)
4 and/or(;) (r)rfjcrk;;Code a;d California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.2, subdzf;isioné
5 || (e)2) and (e)(6), in that Respondents maintained master formulas for certain compounded drugs
6 || that were missing the equipment to be used during compounding and the quality reviews required
7 || at each step in preparation of the drugs. The citcumstances of Respondents’ conduct are set forth
8 || above in paragraph 28. |
9 THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
10 (Deviatioh from Prescription Requirements)
11 32.  Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivisions (j)
12 || and/or (o) of the Code and California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1716, in that
13 || Respondents deviated from the requirements of a prescription. The circumstances of
14 || Respondents’ conduct are set forth above in paragraph 27.
15 FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
16 (Failure to Provide Name of Compounded Drug on Container Label)
17 33. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivisions (j)
18 || and/or (o) of the Code and California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1735.4, subdivision
19 || (2)(2), in that Respondents failed to provide the name of a compounded drug on that drug’s
20 || container label. The circumstances of Respondents” conduct are set forth above in paragraph 27.
21 FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
22 (Performing CURES Reporting at Longer than Permitted Intervals)
23 34.  Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivisions (j)
24 || and/or (o) of the Code and Health and Safety Code section 11165, subdivision (d), in that
25 || Respondents submitted CURES reports at more than seven (7) day intervals. The circumstances
26 || of Respondents’ conduct are set forth above in paragraph 29.
27 || /71
28 || ///
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SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Excessive Refills of Controlled Substances)

35, Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivisions (j)
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eﬁid]or (o)idf fhe Codeﬂaind Health and Safety Cocie section 11200, subdivision (b), in that
Respondents refilled certain schedule IIT and IV controlled substance prescriptions either more
than five (5) times or in quantities exceeding a 120-day supply. The circumstances of
Respondents’ conduct are set forth above in paragraph 23.

| SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Failure to Maintain Records of Compounding Training)

36. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivisions (j)
and/or (o) of the Code and California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1751.6, subdivisions
(b), (c), and/or (e)(2), in that Respondents failed to maintain records of compounding training as
required. The circumstances of Respondents’ conduct are set forth above in paragraph 22.

EIGHTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Dispensing Controlled Substances Based on Improper Forms)

37.  Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivisions M
and/or (o) of the Code and California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1717.3, subdivision
(a), in that Respondents dispensed controlled substances pursuant to preprinted multiple check-off
prescription forms. The circumstances of Respondents’ conduct are set forth above in paragraph
24.

NINTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Inadequate Documenting of Orally Transmitted Prescriptions)

38.  Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivisions ()
and/or (o) of the Code, Health and Safety Code section 11164, subdivision (b)(1), and California
Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1717, subdivision (c), in that Respondents filled orally
transmitted controlled substance prescriptions without reducing the preseriptions to writing,
initialing them, and/or identifying them as orally transmitted prescriptions. The citcumstances of

Respondents’ conduct are set forth above in paragraph 25,
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TENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Filling Prescriptions Based on Improper Prescription Forms)

39.  Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivisions (j)
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and/or (o) of the Code and Health and Safety Code section 11164, subdivision (a), in that
Respondents filled controlled substance prescriptions that were not written on a proper controlled
substance prescription form. The circumstances of Respondents’ conduct are set forth above in
paragraph 26.

DISCIPLINE CONSIDERATIONS

40. To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent Lauden,
Complainant alleges that on or about November 9, 2015, in Case No. CI1 2011 49844, the Board
issued a Modified Citation and Fine to Respondent Lauden based on a violation of section 4126.5,
subdivision (a)(4) of the Code (non-compliant sales to a wholesaler). That Citation is now final
and is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.

41. To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent Lauden,
Complainant further alleges that on or about December 12, 2014, in Case No. CI 2014 62140, the
Board issued a Modified Citation to Respondent Lauden based on a violation of section 4169,
subdivision (a)(1) of the Code (purchasing from an unlicensed entity). That Citation is now final
and is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.

42. 'To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent Reyhani,
Complainant alleges that on or about February 23, 2012, in Case No. C12011 51418, the Board
issued a Citation and Fine and Order of Abatement to Respondent Reyhani based on a violation
of section 4126.5, subdivision (a)(4) of the Code (non-compliant sales to a wholesaler). That
Citation is now final and is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.

43.  To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent Reyhani,
Complainant further alleges that on or about March 28, 2014, in Case No. CI 2013 60628, the
Board issued a Citation and Fine to Respondent Reyhani based on a violation of California Code
of Regulations, title 16, section 1751.7, subdivision (c) (dispensing sterile injectable drug

products that are compounded from more than one non-sterile ingredient before receipt of end
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1 || product testing results). That Citation is now final and is incorporated by reference as if fully set
2 || forth herein.
3 44, To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent Reyhani, E
4 || Complainant further alleges that on or about August 22, 2014, in Case No. CI 2014 62142, the E
5 || Board issued a Citation and Fine to Respondent Reyhani based on a violation of section 4169, E
6 || subdivision (a)(1) of the Code (purchasing from an unlicensed entity). That Citation is now final
7 || and is incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.
8 PRAYER ‘
9 WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
10 || and that following the hearing, the Board of Pharmacy issue a decision:
11 1. Revoking or suspending Original Permit No. PHY 43209 issued to Lauden
12 || Integrative Pharmacy, Inc.;
13 2. Revoking or suspending Sterile Compounding License No. LSC 99162 issued to
14 || Lauden Integrative Pharmacy, Inc.;
15 3. Revoking or suspending Pharmacist License No. RPH 45597 issued to Mehrdad
16 || Reybani; |
17 4. Ordering Lauden Integrative Pharmacy, Inc. and Mehrdad Reyhani to pay the Board
18 || of Pharmacy the reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case pursuant to
19 || Business and Professions Code section 125.3; and,
20 5. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper.
21
22 || pateD:  / /é / / ? d Ao
VIRGINIA HEROLD
23 Executive Officer
Board of Pharmacy
24 Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California
25 Complainant
26
27 | Slss2020do0
28
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